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. Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Trustees Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

The Trustees present their annual report together and financial statements for the year ended 31
August 2020.

The annual report serves the purposes of both a Trustees' report, and a directors' report under
company law.

The Academy Trust operates 6 schools across the North of Engiand, with 5 academies and 1 city
technology college. The Trust operates 4 secondary schools and 2 all-through schools with a
combined pupil roll of 7,756 for 2020/21.

Structure, Governance and Management
Constitution

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable
company’s memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the
Academy Trust. The Trustees of Emmanuel Schools Foundation are also the directors of the
charitable company for the purposes of company law. The charitable company operates as
Emmanuel Schools Foundatlon

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are
included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members' Liability

As a company limited by guarantee, the trust does not have share capital. Every member of the
company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being wound up
while he/ she is a member, or within one year after he/ she ceases to be a member, such amount as
may be required, not exceedlng £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/ she ceases to
be a member. :

Trustees’ Indemnities

The Trust has purchased insurance to protect Trustees and officers from negligent acts, errors or
omissions occurring whilst on school business.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

The power to appoint Trustees rests with the charitable company’'s members and the Secretary of
State for Education. Trustees may serve for three years but are eligible for re-election at the meeting
at which they retire. Subject to remaining eligible to be a particular type of trustee any trustee may be
reappointed or re-elected for consecutive periods not exceeding 12 years in aggregate from the date
of the original appointment but thereafter shall not be éligible for reappointment until one year after
retirement unless there are exceptional circumstances.

Trustees may appoint Co-opted Trustees which means a person who is appointed to be a Trustee by
being Co-opted by Trustees who have not themselves been so appointed. Members may appoint by
ordinary resolution up to 11 Trustees. Trustees who are also employees must not exceed one third of
the total number of Trustees. Parent trustees need not be appointed as the charitable company has
local governing bodies at each school. The approach taken to recruit new Trustees is in accordance
with constitutional documentation and the company’s scheme of delegation.
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Trustees Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Policies and Procedures for the Induction and Training of Trustees and Governors

Training and induction is provided for all new Trustees and governors depending on their existing
experience. All new Trustees and governors are given a tour of our schools and the chance to meet
with staff and students. All Trustees and governors are provided with copies of any governing
documents that are relevant to their role.

Organisational Structure

The Trustees are responsible for setting policy, adopting the strategic development plan and the
annual budget, monitoring the Trust by the use of budgets and making major decisions about the
direction of the Trust, capital expenditure and senior staff appointments. The strategy of the Trust is
executed and momtored by the Executlve Team consrstrng of the Chief Executrve Ofﬁcer the Chief
Operatmg Off cer and three Executlve Pnncrpals who are also Pnncnpals of a school The operatlonal

,,,,,,

four Principals. This leadership structure will be reviewed in 2021

The senior management team of each school is delegated responsrblllty to manage their school with
oversught from the Executlve Team,,ensunng pollcres agreed by the Trustees are followed correctly,

the Accounting Officer for the Trust, though the Principal and semor management team of each
school retain delegated authority to manage the operational activities of their school.

Arrangements for setting pay and reffiineration of Key mariagement personriel

Trustees do not receive any remuneratron in their roles, except for the Chief Executive Officer. The
pay and remuneration of the Academy Trust's key management personnel, being members of the
Leadershlp Team and Vice Pnncupals is approved by the Board of Trustees’ delegated Remuneration
Commrttee foIIowmg consultatron in accordance with, the’ Semor Pay Pollcy such as wrth the Chief
Fmancral Ofﬁcer Head of HR and for Pnnclpals the Chalr of the relevant local govermng body Thrs is
followmg i evnew agamst performance 360‘degree feedback and relevant benchmarks such as
markeét recruutment surveys ‘and 'STPCD héadteacher pay’ groups

Trade Union Facility Time

Relevant Union Officials

Number of employees “Who were relevant unionFull-time equivalent employee number
pfﬁmals during the period

9 4.4

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of employees
0% 6
1% - 50% 3
51% - 99% 0
100% 0
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Trustees Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

otal cost of facility time £5,672.57
Total pay bill £34,958,639

Percentage of the total pay bill spend on facility0.02%
time

Paid trade union activities

otal spend on paid trade union activities as a0%
percentage of total paid facility time hours

Two of our schools in 2019/20 purchased facilities time from local authority traded services and these
costs are included. However, these schools also directly employed TU reps and their time so spent is
also included.

Connected Organisations including Related Party Relationships

Emmanuel Schools Foundation is a stand-alone Multi Academy Trust and is governed by its members
and Trustees, none of whom receive any remuneration for their positions, except for the Chief
Executive Officer. Details of this and any expenses are detailed at note 10.

Emmanuel Schools Foundation controlled the Iegal .entity of Joseph Swan Academy which was a
dormant company dunng the penod and was dussolved on 29 September 2020. In addmon
Emmanuel Schools Foundation is the sole shareholder of Emmanuel Academy Services whlch
operates a uniform sales service across four of our schools.

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the trust

foster the Trust’s busmess relatlonshlps Thls mlght include usmg relatlonshlps with local busmesses
to bring in knowledge and expertise into business studies lessons for example. Our relationships with
local and regional businesses enable us to ensure we get good value for money on our trading
relationships and understand changing, dynamic market conditions. This is reflected in dealings with
suppliers such as catering firms, uniform suppliers, IT firms and statlonery suppllers for example.
During the coronavirus pandermic, such relationships have provén mvaluable to ensure we kept our
schools open with access to cleaning materials for instance, as well as getting access to laptops for
staff and students amongst other in-demand resources.

Objectives and Activities
Objects and Aims

The objects of the Trust are summarised below:

to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom by promoting schools with
a Christian ethos offering a broad curriculum;
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Trustees Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

to promote, for the benefit of the inhabitants of the areas in which the academies are situated,
« the provision of facilities for recreation or other leisure time with the object of improving the
condition of life of the said inhabitants.

The main aims of the Trust are summarised below:

to raise the standard of educational achievement and to maximise the progress of all
students;

+  to ensure student's personal growth and character development;

to ensure that every child enjoys the same high quality of education in terms of resourcing,
tuition and care;

to be a catalyst for economic growth within the communities our schools serve by raising
aspiration, challenging parochialism and providing enhanced qualifications;

+  to provide value for money for the funds expended;
» to comply with all appropriate statutory and curriculum requirements;
+ to maintain close links with industry and commerce;

to conduct our business in accordance with the highest standards of integrity, probity and
openness.

Objectives, Strategies and Activities

The Trust's objectives, strategies and activities are set to reflect the educational aims and the ethos of
the Trust. Thé key strateglc objectlves for the' year included:

Building the character development of our students through better understanding of our
e culture and ethos, and practising the virtues underpinning good character, as well as
improving attendance and punctuality

Improving academic performance through developing better middle leadership, curriculum
development and stronger key stage transition

Strengthemng commumtles through bulldrng relationships with key stakeholders and other
- schools, and seeking to grow the Trust to extend spiritual, social, cultural and economic
regeneration to further communities

In addition, there are additional objectives around further enhancing and improving our support
functrons governance staff development and ﬁnanclal performance. These strategic objectives have
set out a series of measures and succéss criteria which will be presented to and reviewed by the
Board of Trustees. More detailed school specific development plans, linked to the overall strategy, are
monitored by local governing bodies.

Our objectives are focussed on maintaining and enhancing the academic success and reputation of
our schoals, promoting two-way community involvement, and encouraging students to support a wide
range of charitable projects and character-building activities. To ensure that standards are continually
raised both in the short term and long term, our schools operate a rigorous programme of monitoring
and self-evaluation, are visited by inspectors, inter-foundation departmental observations,
departmental audits, teaching mentors and undertake a comprehensive comparison of results from
entry to assess student level of progress and added value.
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Trustees Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

In addition, during the year we have focussed attention on school improvement at our two newly
acquired schools, Grace College and Christ's College, as well as Trinity Academy. At Grace College
we have restructured the leadership team, supported by an Executive Principal, and brought in a
number of new and highly experienced teachers to improve learning. At Christ’s College we have also
restructured the leadership team, as supported by an Executive Principal, brought in a new Head of
Primary Years and a new experienced Principal has started at the school in November 2020. At
Trinity Academy, intensive school improvement plans were led during the year by an Executive
Principal and the Director of Teaching School. A new Executive Principal started at the school in
September and is supported by a Head of School who started in June. At each of our schools we
have also been investing in the learning environment, buildings and IT infrastructure.

Public Benefit

The Trustees confirm that they have complied with their duty to have due regard to the guidance on
public benefit published by the Charity Commission and they are satisfied that the trust's public
benefit is clearly demonstrated in the strategies and objectives set out above and the achievements
summarised below.

Strategic Report
Achievements and Performance
Achievements in the Year

As part of steps taken to fi ght the spread of coronavirus (COVID-19), the govemnment announced that
all exams due to take place in schoals and colleges in England in. summer 2020 were cancelled and
that |t wnII not publlsh any school or college level educational performance data based on tests,
assessments or exams for 2020. All those workmg with schools and colleges such as Ofsted,
Department for Education regional teams and local authorities, should use data from previous years
when assessing school and college performance, and not the 2020 data. Therefore, the following
details achievements in the year, but refers only in headline terms to KPIs and educational
performance from 2019.

our schools continue to enjoy substantial popularity, partlcularly at Emmanuel College which
contmues to be one of the most successful state funded schools in the country and consistently
recognised as the top performing state school in the North East of England. The Real Schools Guide
had named Emmanuel in the top two secondary schools in the North East for five years running in
2019. In areas of exam success, achievement in creative subjects and sport, and for the personal
character—development of the sludents Emmanuel College has an. outstandlng reputat|on In. addmon
the results for The King's Academy have maintained thenr levels followmg improvements in recent
years. Resdlts at Bede Academy continue to be amongst the best in Northumberland whilst Christ's

College had a very good set of GCSE results.

The 2019 external examination resuits continued Emmanuel College's history of high attainment with
83% of students achieving grade 4 or higher in Maths and English (standard Basics) and 63% grade 5
or higher (strong Basics). Emmanuel College's progress 8 score of +0.49 was the highest in
Gateshead. The average attainment score at 57.4 was also the highest in Gateshead as was the
EBacc average point score of 5.3. The A Level pass rate was again 100%, with 62% of grades at B or
better and 17% at A*. Many of our students have gone on to further education at the top universities in
the country. The school also increased its intake in 2019 to 240 in year 7 as it looks to bring a high
standard of education to more students.
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Trustees Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

The King's Academy remains extremely popular and has therefore increased its intake by 32 students
ayear. Itis also a specrahst centre, wrthln a mainstream school setting, in Teesside for students with
visual, hearing and physrcal impairments, and learning difficulties. The Summer 2019 external
examination results were again around the average at GCSE for progress 8, with figures close to
those nationally. An Attainment 8 score of 42.7 and average EBacc score of 3.69 showed strong
achievements despite the higher than national average numbers of disadvantaged and SEN students.
A-level results continue to perform well with a pass rate of 99% and 77% achieving C grades or
higher.

2019's GCSE results for Bede Academy saw a good attainment 8 at 45.3 albeit progress 8 slipped a
littte to -0.2. The standard Basics measure was 65% and strong basics of 36%. The English
Baccalaureate average points score of 3.94 was also very positive. The A level pass rate was 99%
with 70% achieving C grades or better.

Key:Stage-2- results were a good; 74% reachlng the expected standard in Readmg, Wrmng, Teacher
Assessment and'Maths, with 16% achieving the hrgher standard. All attainment results were above
national averages with the most significant being in reading and writing. Attainment was in the top
25% of schools for writing, top 30% for reading and top 35% for maths.

The i2019 GCSE; results at Trinity .showed attalnment 8 at 404‘but with the overall progress 8
measure stlll |I|ustrat|ng that further work |s needed for the forthcomlng year A Level results contmued

.....

visit again during 2021. The last Ofsted visit in September 2017 noted that, whilst the overall rating
was ‘Requires Improvement’, there had been significant improvements in the quality of leadership and
behavrour The Slxth‘ Form provrsron ;:o;\trnues ‘to be,rated as Goo;!

N f f £ i l i ‘ i ! i H ; ! ¥
2019’s3 GCSE results fér Grace Collége (whlch jorned mld-year) saw attarnment 8 at 434 wrth
progress 8 below’ average. The standard Basics méasure was 55% and strong basics of 29%. The A
level pass rate was 93% with 56% achieving C grades or better. The Trust has embarked upon a
major school improvement plan to significantly improve outcomes at Grace with a plan to achieve at
least Good for the next Ofsted visit. Grace also saw Jin increase in the year 7 intake to 240 which will

ee the school grow!over comrng years and saw a srgnrfcant rnvestment by the Trust m the-
mfrastructure ‘of, the burldmg dunng the summers of 2019 and 2020 LI I + v

2019's GCSE results for Christ's College (which also joined mid-year) saw a very good progress 8 at
+0.58 and attainment 8 at 52.7 which were the highest in Sunderiand. The standard Basics measure
was 72% and strong basrcs of 57%. The English Baccalaureate average pomts score of 4.56 was also
very posrtlve The A level pass rate was 100% wrth 64% achrevrng C grades or better '

Key StageI 2 results saw 57% reachmg the expected standard in Reading, Writing, Teacher
Assessment and Maths, with 8% achieving the higher standard. Reading and EGPS remained above
national averages and there was a 9 percentage point improvement in EGPS. The Trust has also
embarked upon a major school improvement plan for Christ’s to significantly improve outcomes
following the school joining our trust last year. Christ's College has also seen’ ‘a significant investment
in the mfrastructure of the school in 2019 and 2020 by the Trust with the help of grant funding from the
DFE. Christ's was 'visited by Ofsted in November 2019 and received a Requires Improvement rating.
As the school only joined our Trust in May 2019 our plans had not at that stage had chance to bear
fruit in turning the school around, but we now feel the school is on an upward trajectory.
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Trustees Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

The Academy Trust promotes community involvement by making its facilities available to individuals,
groups and businesses in the respective local area for sports and conferencing activities. A number of
community groups use our facilities on a weekly basis while Emmanuel College enjoys an active
partnership with Whickham Feliside Youth Football Club with whom outdoor sports facilities are
shared. Whilst lettings have been interrupted this year due to coronavirus restrictions, we hope to
develop further partnerships over the coming year that will enable community groups to thrive
including a plan to improve our sporting facilities at Grace, Trinity and Bede for our students and
community.

The Academy Trust encourages students to be involved in activities in the community. Students visit
primary schools and special schools in their local area; some work for charities and charity shops;
others have given time to work in residential care homes and some act as reading mentors to younger
students in their school. In addition, students are encouraged to gain an understanding of the world
and, in normal years, take part in outdoor activities including trips to Nokuphila School in South Africa
and sailing a Tall Ship across the North Sea. We also have a Combined Cadet Force centre at The
King's Academy to offer additional -opportunities to our students there.

Key Performance Indicators

Selection of Key financial performance indicators from 2019:

=

Emmanuel TThe Kings _|Bede Tty Grace Chrisfs
Progress 8 +0.49 +0.05 +0.2 -0.39 +0.34 #0.58
Aftainment 8 57.4 427 453 40.4 W34 27
% Achieving basics 83 50 5 53 55 7]

Current Ofsted ratings are: Emmanuel (Outstanding); Bede (Good); The King's (Good); Grace College
(n/a); Trinity (Requires Improvement, with improvements being noted) and Christ's College (Requires
Improvement). :

The unréstrictgf‘d fund reserves are:£2,829,000 (2019 - £2,934,000)

The restricted general fund reserves are £59,000 (2019 - £133,000) excluding pension reserve and
restricted fixed assets

Total free reserves are £2,888,000 (2019 - £3,067,000)

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the governing body has a reasonable expectation that the
Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. For this reason it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial

statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the
Statement of Accounting Policies.
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Trustees Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Promoting the success of the company

The Trustees recognise that their role as directors of the company must promote the success of the
company, and in doing so must act fairly and have regard to a range of consequences of their
decisions on the Trust's long term viability. These include the interests of employees; business
relationships with suppliers, customers and stakeholders; the community and the environment, and
our reputation for high standards of business conduct. The Trustee's take all their decisions in the
best interests of the Trust and our many stakeholders in order that we maintain our good reputation
and to further the needs of the communities in which we operate.

Financial Review
Review of the Financial Position of the Academy Trust

The Trust took on two new schools mid-way through 2019 and has spent time and resources during
the year embedding these into the Trust and implementing school improvement plans. As such
comparative figures for the prior year show large increases in income and expenditure this year, and
capital spend on these schools is significant in enabling a better learning environment. In addition the
impacts of Covid-19 restrictions reduced some of our non-grant income significantly, such as catering
and Iettmgs and we have therefore undertaken savungs exercises to mmgate the impacts of this.

Most of the Academy Trust's income is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding Agency
(ESFA) in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The main
funding for our academies is covered by a master-funding agreement whilst Emmanuel College is
subject to a separate city technology college funding agreement. The grants received during the year
ended 31 August 2020 and the associated expendlture are shown as restricted funds in the statement
of financial activities.

Expenditure for the year was mainly covered by grants from the ESFA, LEA and other income. The
deficit for the period was £2,372,000. The revenue surplus for the year was £894,000 before capital
transfers and pension administration costs.

At 31 August 2020 the net book value of tangible fixed- assets was £89,658,000 and movements in
tangible fixed assets are shown in Note 12 to the accounts The assets are used exclusnvely for
providing educatlon and associated support services to the pupils of the Academy Trust. The balance
sheet restricted fixed assét fund is reduced by transfers of amounts equivalent to any depreciation
charges over the expected useful life of the assets concerned to agree to the net book value.

The Trust held fund balances-at 31 ‘August 2020 of £75,600,000 comprising £90,099,000 in the
restricted fixed asset fund, a deficit of £17,328,000 in restncted income funds, including a pension
reserve deficit of £17,387,000, and £2,829,000 in unrestricted income funds.

Reserves Policy

In order to alleviate the financial risks identified by the risk assessment and guarantee the continued
activities of the Academy Trust, the Board of Trustees will accumulate a minimum reserve 2.5% of
GAG income. The financial risk to the Academy Trust is balanced alongside the Academy Trust's
vision to maintain the highest levels of educational provision for its beneficiaries. The Board of
Trustees will therefore set a maximum limit for its reserve funds of £1m per school. This equates to
approximately two months of the delegated funding from the ESFA.
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Trustees Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Reserves held in excess of the maximum limit will be reviewed by the Board of Trustees on a regular
basis and an appropriate range of options will be considered. These might include re-investing funds
in capital projects or to generate extra income for the Academy Trust's activities. The reserves policy
is reviewed annually taking into account new risks that have emerged. Schools may be allowed to fall
below the minimum required reserve balance or fall into deficit if this is required to enable significant
investment in assets or improved teaching and learning in the short term. If this is approved the Board
will require the school to set in place a robust plan to bring reserves back into line with the policy.
These action plans may include a thorough review of the curriculum led financial planning model and
central control over school spend.

The current level of free reserves (total funds less the amount held in fixed asset restricted funds and
excluding the pension reserve) is £2,888,000 which is within the boundaries of our stated policy.

Investment Policy

The Trustees have the power to invest monies of the charitable company, not immediately required
for the furtherance of its objects, in accordance with the Academies Financial Handbook. Any
investments made will be in funds deemed by Trustees to be low risk such as bank deposit accounts.
Investments must be made only in accordance with written procedures approved by the Board of
Trustees. This should take account of the level of risk inherent in the investment and any social or
ethlcal conslderataons . .

All investments must be recorded in sufficient detail to identify the investment and to enable the
current market value to be calculated. The information required will normally be the date of purchase,
the cost and a description of the investment. Additional procedures will ensure any income receivable
from the investment is received and monitored. Currently the only investments made are circa £2m
held in a deposut account with Lloyds and up to £350, 000 to the Trust’s tradmg subsudrary Emmanue!
Academy Senvices.’

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Trustees have ensured that the maijor risks to which the trust is exposed have been identified and
that nsk management strategles have been lmplemented

The Trustees have developed systems to respond quickly to evolving risks arising from factors within
the Trust and to changes in the external environmernit including procedures for reporting failings
immediately to appropriate levels of management and the Trustees, together with details of corrective
action being undertaken. They have embedded the control system in the Academy Trust's operations
so that it bécomés part of the culture of the Academy Trust and communicated that employees have
responsnblllty for internial control as part of their accountablllty for achieving objectlves

Current risks include uncertainty around Covid-19 issues, associated costs and possible further
lock-down, levels of future funding and pension contributions on the financial performance of the
Trust. Our schools are ali subject to detailed risk assessments to remain open and we have put in
place detailed plans for remote learning including providing access to a wide variety of devices and
leamning platforms We are continuing to wark with an integrated curriculum and financial plan model
to improve financial performance to mitigate future financial risks, and to build a succession plan for
leaders.
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Trustees Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Fundraising

The Trust undertakes an element of charitable fundraising largely for other local and international
charities. The Academy Trust is committed to encouraging students to promote charitable activities in
their involvement in the community and-awareness of those less fortunate in the world, which has led
to a number of fundraising events being held during the year which raised money for charities
including the Love Trust which aims to improve education in South Africa at the Nokuphila School;
Health and Hope to improve education and health in Myanmar; St Oswald's Hospice and Cancer
Research. Unfortunately, we were unable to undertake as many charitable activities this year due to
Covid-19 restrictions.

Our schools do not work with any commercial participators / professional fundraisers, nor do we
employ dedicated fundraising staff. The Trust is mindful of the communities within which it operates.
In the circumstances when fundraising is undertaken, systems and controls are in place to separate
and protect funds. The Academy Trust is mlndful of its respon51bulmes under the Charities (Protectlon
and Social Investment) Act 2016 and legal rules, and ensures all activities are agreed and monitored
at Senior Leadership Team level in compliance with relevant legal rules. Recognised standards are
applied to ensure that fundraising is open, honest and respectful, protecting the public from undue
pressure to donate. Complaints are handled and monitored through the Academy Trust's complaints
procedure,

Streamlined Ene?gy and Carbon Repért_ing

ESF currently maintain both scope 1 & 2 emissions, which are generated from our schools and
offices, and emissions from transport (minibuses and grey fleet; personal cars used for business
purposes).
ESF is currently devising a strategy to significantly reduce our carbon footprint by:

+  Encouraging employees/staff to purchase renewable technology cars i.e., hybrid vehicles,

* Purchasing energy efficient equipment where appropriate in our schools,

+  Replacing HVAC and heating systems with energy-efficient equipment where possible,

. Adopting Behavioural changé measures where possible:
We have a longstanding commitment to tackling climate change. Our calculated carbon footprint for

the current Trust financial year is 2,224.51 tCO2e, whilst energy consumption was 10,294,728.9 kWh
(10,294 MWh).

Methodology

We have reported all our emission sources under the legislation as required. We have calculated and
reported our emissions in line with the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard
(revised edition) and emission factors from the UK Government's GHG Conversion Factors for
Company Reporting 2019 and 2020. The reporting period is our financial year from September 2019
to August 2020.
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Trustees Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

2019/2020 Emissions

Tonnes CO2 equivalent (tCQ2e)

Scope 1 (natural gas) 1,373.87
Scope 2 (electricity) 821.99
Scope 3 (transport) 28.65
Total 2,224.51

Scope 1 and scope 2 carbon intensity 0.292 tCO2e per pupil.

The intensity metric is based on 7,613 (number of pupils taught during the financial year).

Total Emissions

Efficiency Measures Taken

1. Replaced aging office equipment with energy-efficient products,
2. Expanded video conferencing and online'meetings (as opposed to F2F meetings).
3. Replacing old halogen, T8 and inefficient lamps with low-energy LED's.
Objectives for 2020/2021
1. Reduce our baselme eIectncuty consumptlon by 2%.
2 nghtmg Contmue to evolve and mstall low energy lighting across our building portfolio.
3. Continual review of existing office equipment and company policies.
4. Reviewing supply contracts to determine feasibility of renewable energy.

ESF will report on progress within our next set of financial accounts.

Plans for Future Periods

Our schools aim to maintain and improve upon the high level of academic achievement already
evident, as well as seeking to lmprove consistency, communication and collaboration within and
across the schools In addltlon we will contmue to follow ouir five year strateglc development plan
focussing on our three main goals supported by three key enablers

Character Development. We are working towards a first-principles approach to character
development that will command national respect and generate international interest

Academic Excellence. We are working to set all ESF schools on trajectory of Ofsted
outstanding

Community Transformation: We aspire to educate as many as possible of our students from
early childhood so that the impact on our schools' communities can be strengthened and to
expand into new communities

Investment in Staff: We are working to make ESF the employer of choice amongst
Multi-Acac%emy Trusts

Support and Challenge: We are committed to building a support team whose support and
strategic guidance is recognised by the schools as invaluable
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Trustees Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Wise Spending: We are committed to ensuring that all of our activities are financially
sustainable and offer excellent value for money.

The next academic year will see continued focus on improving academic outcomes at Trinity
Academy, Grace College and Christ's College; greater collaboration between our schools on
curriculum and refreshing our IT strategy. We expect Covid-19 will continue to provide a challenge
during the year and expect this to occupy a lot of management time in ensuring that we can continue
to provide a quality education to our students either in school or remotely. In addition, we will continue
to investigate options to expand our educational provision to a wider student body through expansion
of the Multi-Academy Trust.

Disabled Employees

The Academy Trust aims to comply with its obligations under the Equality Act 2010. Thus, we do not
have separate policies relating to protected characteristics in respect of recruitment or any other
employmeént practice.

Where, under the Act, reasonable adjustments are required to be made for either prospective (in the
case of recruitment) or existing employees the Academy Trust accommodates such adjustments.

As apublic sector organlsatlon approprlate steps have already been taken to eénsure oui premises are
accessiblé e g9: Ilfls ramps, automatic and wide ddors; appropnate toilet: facilities; braille’ signage etc.
We flisten to user feedback to ensure that we continue to meet the needs of the communities we
serve.

Employee Engagement

Last year we started establishing employee consultation bodies across our schools, our ambitions to
undertake a staff survey have been disrupted by COVID-19 — though schools have taken steps to
ensure consultation on local risk assessments and engage about staff well-being. These actions are
being developed further over the coming year.

Auditor. ;
Insofar as the Trustees afe aware:

» there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware; and

« the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

Reappomtment of Auditors
The auditors MHA Tait Walker are deemed to be reappointed under section 487(2) of the Companies
Act 2006.

The Trustees Report mcorporatung a Strategic Report, was approved by order of the members of the
Governing Body on .{4:0Q\:202] and signed on its behalf by:

B

S McKinlay
Trustee
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Governance Statement

Scope of Responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Emmanuel Schools
Foundation has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However such
a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as
accounting officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and
good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to
it in the funding agreement between the Academy and the Secretary of State for Education. He is also
responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal
control. :

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and
in the statement of Trustees' responsibilities.

The Board. of Trustees met seven times during the year. Attendance was as follows:

Director Meetings attended Out of a possible
Stewart McKinlay 7 7
Maitin Oldknow
Dr Maik Pike -
Maura Regan
Peter Pickthall
- Anthony Bird
Mark Chambers
Simon Goon
Wendy Adeniji

NN A N s NN
N NN NN NN N

Two Trustees are responsible for health and safety across the Academy Trust, one Trustee is the
safeguarding lead and one Trustee is the CEO. Four committees have béen formed namely a Finance
and Resources Committee, an Education, Standards and Performance Committee, a Remuneration
Committee and an Investment Panel. All have terms of reference. The Board of Trustees will meet at
least six times a year.
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Governance Statement (continued)

The Finance and Resources Committee, which also acts as the Audit and Risk Committee, met four
times during the year. Attendance was as follows:

Director Meetings attended Out of a possible
Stewart McKinlay 1 4
Martin Oldknow 4 4
Peter Pickthall 4 4
Simon Goon 2 4

In 2019-20 the Board of Trustees and its committees discussed and dealt with a variety of issues
covering, for example:-

«  Strategic Development
«  Exam results and plans for teaching, learning and curriculum
*  Character development and ethos
*  Improvement plans for the 2 schools who joined the Trust in 2018-19
+  ‘Action plans for Trinity Academy and s¢hool leadership
+  Policy updates ‘
«  Updates to the Scheme of Delegation
. Review of finances across the Academy Trust and approval of budgets and forecasts
+  Review of human rfe‘sources, _gd\iema'hce and premises management
«  Leadership structure and succession planning
+ IT and premises infrastructure and investment

*  Safeguarding, and health and safety
Governaece Review

A review of board and committee effectiveness will be undertaken during 2020-21 and the Board are
considering the skills matrix with a view to bringing in additional trustees. This led to Wendy Adeniji
being appointed in September 2019. Local governing bodies continue to review their effectiveness
bi-annually with the next review scheduled for spring 2021, the results of which will be incorporated
into governor/ Academy development plans

Review of Value for Money

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the
Multi-Academy Trust delivers good value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer
understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in
return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the Academy Trust's use of its resources has provided good
value for money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for
money can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where available. The accounting
officer for the Academy Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Governance Statement (continued)

The raising of academic attainment

The Trust has invested heavily in improving standards and ensuring the learning environment, IT
resources and quality teaching are in place to enable effective learning both in school and via remote
learning. This has involved significant investment in IT resources, in particular this year, due to
Covid-19 issues but this will benefit our students in the long term as well. As stated above, the
performance indicators for this year cannot be meaningful and as such we state below some of the
key indicators form the prior year.

in 2019, 83% of Emmanuel College students achieved grade 4 or higher in maths and English
(standard Basics) and 63% grade 5 or higher (strong Basics). The average points achieved for the
English Baccalaureate was 5.3. The Progress 8 figure of +0.49 indicates that Emmanuel College has
maintained the strong performances of previous years. At A Level, 62% of A Level grades were at
grade B or higher, with 31% of all grades being A*-A.

When last mspected Emmanuel was graded 'Outstandmg in every category. Key findings included the
following statements Regardless of their starting points, all students make exceptional progress to
exceed srgmﬁcantly the national average by the end of Year 11 and in the sixth form; behaviour is
outstanding and provision in the sixth form is excellent.

The Klngs Academy contlnues to -provide a very good quality education to the students of south
Mlddlesbrough‘ In-its most recent mspectron (January 2017), Ofsted graded the Academy as 'Good'
This is the ' fourth such gradlng of “Good” in fourteen years, demonstratmg a hugh degree of
consistency m the standard of high quality education they provide. Behaviour "has improved
significantly and the Academys focus on teaching quality has led to rapid improvement in students'
learnmg GCSE results |mproved in 2019 with a Progress 8 score of -0.05. In addition, the school had
an attamment 8 of 42 5. At A Level 77% of aII grades were grade C or higher, wrth 23% of aII grades
bemg "A"A‘ ‘The'Kungs Academy remalns extremely'popular ‘and is* also a specrallst centre in
Tee55|de for students with vrsual hearlng and physical lmparrments“and Iearmng difficulties.

Bede Academy continues to ensure that the highest support is in place to ensure an outstanding and
transformatlonal educatlon from ages 3-19. GCSE results in 2019 showed a Progress 8 score of -0.2,
a standard Basrcs measure of 65% and strong basucs of 36% At A Level 70% of aII grades were
grade C of! ge ““““

expected ‘st a'rd in readmg, wntmg ‘teacher assessment and maths and 16% achlevmg the higher
standard. At .its most recent Ofsted inspection in June: 2017 the Academy was again rated as 'Good'
in every category.

The Executive Principal of ESF, continued to lead Trinity Academy during the year, but we also
|mplemented a refresh of the Ieadershlp team that will drive raprd |mprovement This has seen a new
Head of School appomted in June 2020 and a new Pnncrpal in September 2020. GCSE results in
2019 saw a Progress 8 score of -0.39. The standard Basics measure was 53% and strong Basics
24%. At A Level, 79% of all grades were grade C or higher, with 22% of all grades being A*-A.

Grace College joined ESF in April 2018 and has been led since by the former Vice Principal from
Emmanuel College, as the new Prrncrpal With a refreshed leadershlp team and investment in staff
and mfrastructure the school has seen a number of improvements already. The exam results for 2019
saw an improved Progress 8 to -0.34 (from -0.52) before many of our improvement projects have
progressed. Standard Basics also improved from 47% to 55%. The school leadership has a robust
action plan to deliver improvements in future years.
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Governance Statement (continued)

Christ's College joined ESF in May 2019 and was led for the academic year by the former Vice
Principal from Bede Academy supported by an Executive Principal. A new experienced Principal has
now been appointed in November 2020. With a new refreshed leadership team and further investment
in staff and infrastructure the school has also seen some early improvements. GCSE results in 2019
saw Progress 8 rise from +0.04 to +0.58 although this swing is partly due to variability from small
cohorts in the school. A further action plan is in place to deliver a long term sustainable future for the
school.

Our schools continue to enjoy substantial popularity, particularly at Emmanuel College which
continues to be one of the most successful state funded schools in the country and consistently
recagnhised as one of the top performing state schoals in the North East of England. In areas of exam
success, achievement in creative subjects and sport, and for the personal character-development of
the students Emmanuel Coilege has an outstanding reputation. In addition, the results for The King's
Academy have seen consistent improvement with particularly strong progress being made in science
and technology subjects. Results at Bede Academy continue to be amongst the best in
Northumberland whilst Christ's College’s results were very good at Key Stage 4.

Robust governance and oversight of the trust's finances

Monitoring of the trust's internal controls is carried out by MHA Tait Walker (auditors) and gives
assurance that controls are in place and carried out in accordance to set policies and procedures.

Financial control is managed by a central resource and comprehensive budgeting and monitoring,
together with the production of timely management accounts which are produced by the Finance
Director and reviewed by the Accounting Officer, Trustees and for school specif c accounts by
Principals and members of the local govemning boards. Joint tendering exercises are frequently
carried out between the Emmanuel Schools Foundation schools to achieve economies of scale.

All major capital projects and financial costs associated with the trust's strategic development plan
and Academy development plans are approved by the Trustees and are monitored by the Finance
Director and Investment Panel.

As a result of financial pressures in the education sector, the staffing structure and curriculum has
been reviewed across our schools with staff being deployed efficiently whilst ensuring that our
student's éducation is not compromised.

Shared services and systems are used across the Foundation schools to ensure value for money is
being achieved. Plans are in place to undertake further reviews in the coming year to ensure fit for
purpose and efficient support services are in place for the future.

Targets are set to measure financial and other performances and are reviewed by the Accounting
Officer, Trustees and govemors.

Clearly defined purchasing guidelines have been put in place with delegated lines of authority and
segregation of duties.

Risks have been identified and managed and are updated on a regular basis.

Contracts are reviewed to ensure we receive value for money whilst ensuring quality and
effectiveness. Procurement of IT and premises costs are managed centrally to ensure the trust
benefits from bulk purchasing of capital items and software supplies.
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Governance Statement (continued)

The Trustees, governors and senior staff apply the principles of best value when making decisions
about the allocation of resources to best promote the aims and values of the trust, targeting resources
to best improve standards and the quality of the provision and the use of resources to best support
the various educational needs of all pupils.

Ensuring the trust demonstrates good value from money and effective use of resources

The trust benchmarks financial performance against other schools and Multi-Academy Trusts to
demonstrate value for money and to learn where savings can be made.

Tender exercises are carried out regularly to ensure that high value purchases are competitive in the
market place. All tenders are carried out in accordance with set policies and procedures.

Maximising income generation

Emmanuel Schools Foundation centrally employs a Business Development Manager that actively
seeks to maximise income through the hire of the Academy Trust's facilities across its schools.

Reviewing controls and managing risks

Monthly Trust management accounts are produced and reviewed by the Finance Director and the
Chief Executive, and any significant variances that may have an impact on budgets are addressed
and rectified.

Similarly, each school has monthly management accounts produced and reviewed by the Finance
Director and the relevant Principal.

Insurance levels are reviewed annually and used cost-effectively to manage risks.

The Trustees review the reserve levels of the Academy Trust at least annually. This review
encompasses the nature of income and expenditure streams, the need to match income with
commitments and the nature of reserves.

The Trustees have determined that an appropriate level of free reserves should be maintained. The
reason for this is to provide sufficient working capital to cover délays between spending and receipt of
grants and to provide a cushion to deal with unexpected emergencies such as urgent maintenance
and to plan for future capital projects.

The Academy Trust ensures that all surplus cash balances are invested in an interest bearing account
to maximise interest earning potential.

Reviewing budget holders accounts

Budget holders receive monthly budget reports which are scrutinised to ensure the most effective use
of resources to meet the objectives of the Foundation. These reports are reviewed on a monthly
basis, and all transactions and up to date balances are available on the web portal to be viewed and
monitored by budget holders, Principals and finance staff. Curriculum changes and any new
strategies are identified in the Academy Trust strategic development plan and individual Academy
development plans.
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Governance Statement (continued)

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on
an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Academy
Trust's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the
impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The
system of internal control has been in place for the Academy Trust for the year ended 31 August 2020
and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Academy Trust board has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed
together with the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate
those risks. The board is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating
and managing the Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the year ending 31
August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This
process is regularly reviewed by the board.

The Risk and Control Framework

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular
management information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a
system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:

comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with annual budget and periodic financial -
reports which are reviewed and agréed by the Board;

regular reviews of reports which indicate financial performance against forecasts and of major
purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

+  sefting targets to measure financial and other performance;
- clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;
+ delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

+ identification and management of risks.

The Board of Trustee's has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and decided to
appoint MHA Tait Walker, the external auditor, to perform this function. The board recognises that the
same firm cannot perform both functions after this year, and has tendered the internal audit function.
This will be undertaken from 2020/21 by Azets Audit Services.

The external auditor’s role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of
checks on the Academy Trust's financial systems. On a termly basis the internal auditor reports to the
board on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the board's financial
responsibilities and annually prepares an annual summary report to the finance committee outlining
the areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider
actions and assess year on year progress.

The Trustees confirm that the external and internal auditors have delivered their schedules of work as
planned. The work performed revealed no material control weaknesses.
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Governance Statement (continued)

Review of Effectiveness
As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of
the system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:
»  the work of the external and internal auditors;
+ the financial management and gdvernahce self-assessment process;
the work of the executive managérs within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system
of internal control and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the
system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Governing Body on luO\ZO?.\ and signed on its behalf
by: )

SMckmlay IR %7

Trustee

: H 15 l- P -0
Accounting officer
Trustee
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As Accounting Officer of Emmanuel Schools Foundation | have considered my responsibility to notify
the Academy Trust Governing Body and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material
irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the
Academy Trust, under the funding: agreements in place between the Academy Trust and the
Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the
requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2019.

I confirm that | and the academy trust Governing Body are able to identify any material irregular or
|mproper use of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of funding under the academy trust's fundmg agreement and the Academles Financial Handbook
2019.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been
discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified
to the Governing Body and ESFA.

Ml it

Prof M Pike
Accounting officer

Date....l ......... AM}{ 0‘2°9'I
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law)
are responsible for preparing the Trustees Report and the financial statements in accordance with the
Academies Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under
company law the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In
preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

» observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2019 to 2020;

* make judgménts and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Compames Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other |rregular|t|es

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company
applies financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of
good financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE
have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information mcluded on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Klngdom
governing the preparatlon and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions.

..... 2 Modlacy

S McKinlay
Trustee
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members of Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Emmanuel Schools Foundation (the ‘academy trust') for
the year ended 31 August 2020, which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating
Income and Expenditure Account, Balance Sheet, Statement of Cash Flows, and Notes to the
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102
‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

= give a true and fair view of the state of the academy trust's affairs as at 31 August 2020 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the
year then ended;

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice;

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2019 to 2020.

Basis for opinion

We conducted ‘our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the academy trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions felé_tihg to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require
us to report to you where:

+ the Trustees use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

» the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt about the academy trust's ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Other information (covers the Reference and Administrative Details, the Trustees Report and
the Governance Statement)

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members of Emmanuel Schools Foundation (continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a
material misstatement of the other information. if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the Trustees Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

» the Trustees Report been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
+ certain disclosures of Trustees remuneration specified by law are not made; or
» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities set out on page 23, the
Trustees are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for belng satisfied that
they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the academy trust's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the
academy trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor's report.
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members of Emmanuel Schools Foundation (continued)

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the academy trust's Trustees, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
academy trust's trustees those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the academy trust and its Trustees as a body, for our audit work, for this repont, or
for the opinions we have formed.

Brian Laidlaw BA CA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of MHA Tait Walker
Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor

Bulman House

Regent Centre

Gosforth

Newcastle upon Tyne

NE3 3LS

MHA Tait Walker is a trading name of Tait Walker LLP.
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Report on Regularity to
Emmanuel Schools Foundation and the Education and Skills
Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 4 July 2019 and further to the
requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies
Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance
about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by Emmanuel Schools Foundation
during the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have been applied to the purposes identified
by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Respective responsibilities of the Governing Body's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of the Governing Body's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 17 February 2017 and the Academies
Financial Handbook extant from 1 September 2019, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and
income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions
conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s
ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement
letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020. We report to you
whether anything has come.to our attentlon in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material
respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the year from 1 September 2019 to 31
August 2020 have not been applled to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 °
issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain
information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a
negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more Ilmlted in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement
and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we
do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and
propriety of the academy trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

+ Review of Governing Body and committee minutes;

* Review of termly Internal Assurance reports;

» Completion of self assessment questionnaire by Accounting Officer;

» Discussions with the Accounting Officer and finance team;

» Review documentation provided to Governors and Accounting Officer setting out responsibilities;
» Obtained formal letter of representation detailing the responsibilities of Governors;

* Review of payroll, purchases and expenses claims on a sample basis;

» Confirmation that the lines of delegation and limits set have been adhered to;

+ Evaluation of internal control procedures and reporting lines;
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Independent Reporting Accountant's Report on Regularity to
Emmanuel Schools Foundation and the Education and Skills
Funding Agency (continued)

+ Review cash payments for unusual transactions;

+ Review of credit card transactions;

+ Review of register of interests;

* Review related party transactions;

* Review of borrowing agreements;

* Review of land and building transactions;

* Review of potential and actual bad debts;

* Review an instance of gifts/hospitality to ensure in line with policy;
+ Consideration of governance issues.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material
respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year from 1 September 2019 to
31 August 2020 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Emmanuel Schools Foundation and the ESFA in accordance with the
terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we may state to Emmanuel
Schools Foundatlon and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than Emmanuel Schools Foundation and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the
conclusion we have formed.

Map Task Walke/

MHA Tait Walker
Chartered Accountants
Bulman House

Regent Centre
Gosforth

Newcastle upon Tyne
NE3 3LS

MHA Tait Walker is a trading name of Tait Walker LLP.
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General  Fixed Asset Total
Funds Funds Funds 2020
Note £ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
Income and endowments from:
Voluntary income
Donations and capital
grants 2 26 - 1,368 1,394
Charitable activities:
Funding for the Academy
trust's educational
operations 3 - 43,488 - 43,488
Teaching schools 29 151 67 - 218
Other trading activities 4 1,069 - - 1,069
Investments 5 14 - - 14
Total 1,260 43,555 1,368 46,183
Expenditure on:
Chérzf;é@[@e activities:
Academy trust educational
operations 7 1,273 44,251 2,960 48,484
Teaching schools 29 - 71 - 71
Total 1,273 44,322, 2,960 48,555
Net expenditure ‘ (13) (767) (1,592) - (2,372)
Transfers between funds (92) (981) 1,073 -
Other recognised gains
and losses
Actuarial gains/(losses) on
defined benefit pension _ o
scﬁ'ghjes 26 - (3.051) - (3.051)
Net movement in deficit (105) (4,799) (519) (5,423)
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds/(deficit) brought
forward at 1 September
2019 2,934 (12,529) 90,618 81,023
Total funds/(deficit) carried
forward at 31 August 2020 2,829 (17,328) 90,099 75,600
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2019
(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Note

Income and endowments from:

Voluntary income

Donations and capital

grants 2
Transfer in from existing
academy

Charitable activities:

Funding for the Academy

trust's educational

operations 3
Teaching schools

Other trading activities 4
Investments 5
Total

Expenditure on:

Charitable activities:

Academy trust educational
operations 7
Teaching schools

Total
Net income/(expenditure)
Transfers between funds

Other recognised gains

and losses

Actuarial gains/(losses) on
defined benefit pension
schemes 26

Net movement in
funds/(deficit)

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds/(deficit) brought
forward at 1 September
2018

Total funds/(deficit) carried
forward at 31 August 2019

Restricted Restricted

Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total
Funds Funds Funds 2019
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
2 - 741 743

91 (1,887) 22,577 20,781

- 35,167 - 35,167

130 46 - 176
1,432 - - 1,432
24 - - ' 24
1,679 33,326 23,318 . . 58,323
1,304 36,396 - 2,637 40,337
- 25 - 25
1,304 36,421 2,637 40,362
375 (3,095) 20,681 17,961

- (944) 944 -
- (4,684) - (4,684)

375 (8,723) 21,625 . 13,277
2,559 ~ (3,806) 68,993 67,746
2,934 (12,529) 90,618 81,023
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

(Registration number: 04464331)
Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2020

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

Current assets
Debtors ‘
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
Net assets excluding pension liability

Pension scheme liability

Net assets including pension liability

Funds of the Academy:

Restricted funds
Restricted income fund
Restricted fixed asset fund
Restricted pension fund-

Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted income fund

Total funds

Note

12

14

15

16

26

17

17

17

2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
89,658 90,364
2,851 1,988
5,197 4,889
8,048 6,877
(4,485) (3.322)
3,563 3,555
93,221 93,919
(234) (234)
92,987 93,685
(17,387) (12,662)
75600 81,023
59 133
90,099 90,618
(17.387) (12.662)
72,771 78,089
2,829 2,934
75,600

81,023

The financial statements on pages 29 to 64 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue

on .14..0\:297.\ and signed on their behalf by:

S McKinlay
Trustee
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

2020 2019
Note £ 000 £ 000
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities - 20 1,206 1,051
Cash flows from investing activities 22 (872) (763)
Cash flows from financing activities 21 (26) -
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year 308 288
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 4,889 4,601
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 23 5,197 4,889
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2020

1 Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting palicies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Repubilic of Ireland (FRS
102) (Charities SORP 2019 (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by
ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

These financial statements are prepared in sterling which is the functional currency of the entity.

The academy trust has taken advantage of the exemption from preparing consolidated financial
statements contained in Section 402 of the Companies Act 2006 on the basis that the results of its
subsidiary undertaking are not material to the results of the group.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the company to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a
period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements.

income
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitiement to the funds, the
receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2020 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Actwmes on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any
performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition
is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are
met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised
as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitiement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are spent on capital projects in line with the terms and conditions of the grant. Capital grants
are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they
are expended.

E

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other inébme '
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the

extent the académy trust has provided the goods or services.

investment income
Interest receivable is included in the statements of financial activities on an accruals basis.

Transfer of existing academies into the trust

Where assets are received on the transfer of an existing academy into the academy trust, the
transferred assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the point when
the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the academy trust. An equal amount of income is
recognised for the transfer of an existing academy into the academy trust within donations and capital
grant income.
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2020 (continued)

1 Accounting policies {continued)

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the
amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of
each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes
and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operatlons including support costs and

costs relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Tangible fixed assets
Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requmng the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund
in the Statement of Financial Actlvmes and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Deprecnatlon on the
relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial
Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on
such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to
write off the cost of each asset on a straight line basis over its expected useful life, per the table
below.

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged
until they are brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2020 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Asset class Depreciation method and rate
Long leasehold land and buildings over 50 years

Furniture and equipment over 5 years

Computer equipment over 5 years

Motor vehicles over 5 years

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a resuit of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy
trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for
the goods or services it must provide.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result
of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation

can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial Instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets
and financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 14. Prepayments are not financial instruments.
Amounts due to the charity’s wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Taxation and social security are not included in the
financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as
the cash settiement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than
cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to charity’'s wholly owned subsidiary are held at
face value less any impairment.
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2020 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax
purposes.

Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital
gains received within categories covered by Part 11, Chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains
are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Pension benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme (‘'TPS’) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘'LGPS’). These are defined benefit
schemes. The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost
of pensions over employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost
is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
academy trust in separate trusteé-administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2020 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Fund accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from Education Skills and Funding Agency and the Department for
Education Group.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in riote 26, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full
actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions
liability at 31 August 2020. Any differences between the fi igures derived from the roll forward approach
and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Depreciation

The academy trust has made an estimate of the useful lives of the tangible fixed assets. The
estimation requires the company to consider how long the asset is likely to be useful and charge the
cost of the tangible fixed asset over its life to the Statement of Financial Activities. The charge for the
current year was £2,961,000 (2019 - £2,637,000).
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2020 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Critical areas of judgement

Accounting estimates and assumptions are made concerning the future and, by their nature, will rarely
equal the related actual outcome. The key assumptions and other sources of estimation uncertainty
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are as follows:

Assessing indicator of impairment

In assessing whether there have been any indicators of impairment of assets the directors have
considered both external and internal sources of information such as market conditions, counterparty
credit ratings and experience of recoverability. There have been no indicators of impairment identified
during the current financial year.

Agency accounting

The academy trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from ESFA. Payments
received from ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of
financial activities as the trust does not have control over the charitable application of the funds. The
trust can use upto 5% of the allocation towards its own administration costs and this is recognised in
the statement of financial activities. The funds received and paid and any balances held are disclosed
in note 27.

2 Donations and capital grants

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds 2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Other voluntary
income
Capital grants - - 1,368 1,368 741
Other donations ?.6 _- ‘. - 26 2
26 - 1,368 1,394 743
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds 2019
£ 000 ~ £000 £ 000 £ 000
Total 2019 2 - 741 743
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August

2020 (continued)

3 Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations

DfE/ESFA
revenue grants
General Annual
Grant GAG
Other ESFA
Group grants

Other
government
grants

Local authority
grants

Exceptional
government
funding
Coronavirus Job

Retention Scheme

grant
Coronavirus
exceptional
support

Non-government

grants and other
income

Other income from

the academy
trusts educational
operations

Total grants

Total 2019
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Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Totail
funds funds 2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
36,557 - 36,557 30,930
4,838 - 4,838 2,643
41,395 - 41,395 33,673
1,571 - 1,571 1,218
1,571 - 1,571 1,218
174 - 174 -
50 - 50 -
224 - 224 -
298 - 298 376
43,488 - 43,488 35,167
Restrictéd
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds 2019
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000
35,167 - 35,167



Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August

2020 (continued)

3 Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations (continued)

The academy trust has been eligible to claim additional funding in year from government support
schemes in response to the coronavirus outbreak. The funding received is shown above under

“exceptional government funding.”

The funding received for coronavirus exceptional support covers £50,573 of additional cleaning and

PPE costs. These costs are included in notes 7 and 8 below as appropriate.

The academy furloughed some of its catering staff under the government's CJRS. The funding
received of £173,265 relates to staff costs in respect of 74 staff which are included within note 9 below

as appropriate.

4 Other trading activities

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds 2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
Hire of facilities 110 - - 110 139
Recharges and
reimbursements 115 - - 115 80
Catering income 844 - - 844 1,213
1,069 - - 1,069 1,432
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds 2019
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Total 2019 1,432 - - 1,432
5 Investment income
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds 2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Short term
deposits 14 - - 14 24
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds 2019
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Total 2019 24 - - 24
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2020 (continued)

6 Expenditure

Academy's
educational
operations
Direct costs
Allocated support
cosis

Expenses relating
to the teaching
school activities

Total 2019

Non Pay Expenditure

Net incomel(expendiiure) for thé year includes:

Depreciation ’

Fees payable to auditor - audit
Fees payable to auditor - other audit services
(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets

7 Charitable activities

Direct costs - educational operations
Support costs - educational operations

Total Total
Staff costs Premises  Other costs 2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
32,178 2,961 2,391 37,530 30,484
6,441 2,267 2,246 10,954 9,853
- - 71 71 25
38,619 5,228 4,708 48,555 40,362
Non Pay Expenditure
' o Total
Staff costs Premises  Other costs 2019
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
31,411 4,701 4,250 40,362
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
2,961 2,637
10 9
7 5
(1) -
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
37,530 30,484
10,954 9,853
48,484
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August

2020 (continued)

7 Charitable activities (continued)
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Educational Total Total
operations 2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Analysis of support costs
Support staff costs 6,441 6,441 5,922
Technology costs 458 458 427
- Premises costs 2,267 2,267 2,064
Legal costs 246 246 163
Other support costs 1,503 1,503 1,237
Governance costs 39 39 40
Total support costs 10,954 10,954 9,853
8 Staff
Staff costs
2020 2019
£ 000 £000
Staff costs during the year were:
Wages and salaries 27,773 23,368
Social security costs 2,813 2,342
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 7.314 5,053
37,900 30,763
Supply staff costs 595 645
Staff restructuring costs 124 3
38,619 31,411
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Redundancy payments 42 3
Severance payments 82 -
124 3




Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2020 (continued)

8 Staff (continued)
Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:

2020 2019
No. No.

Charitable Activities
Teachers 533 416
Administration and support 550 497
Management 5 3
1,088 916

Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£60,000 was:

2020 2019

No. No.

£60,001 - £70,000 . 14 9
£70,001 - £80,000 6 5
£80,001 - £90,000 4 2
£90,001 - £100,000 2 -
£110,001 - £120,000 1 2
- 1

£120,001 - £130,000
Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust during the year 2019/20 comprised the CEO,
Executive Principal and Director of Finance. The total amount of employee benefits (including
employer pension contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the
academy trust was £327,283 (2019 - £288,540). '

9 Central services
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Emmanuél Schools Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2020 (continued)

9 Central services (continued)

The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:
« Educational support services

« Financial Services

* Human resources, payroll, legal and governance services

« IT Services

« Facilities and project management and business development

The academy trust charges for these services on the following basis:

« on the basis of actual central costs split pro rata to grant income between the schools that were part
of the Trust for the whole year; and

» Grace and Christ's were given a payment holiday for central services for 2019/20 in order to allow
significant investment in these two new schools for our Trust. A recharge will start in 2020/21.

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2020 2019

£ 000 £ 000

Emmanuel College 352 327
Bede Academy 360 350
The King's Academy 336 339
Trinity Academy 292 294
1,340 - 1,310

10 Related party transactions - trustees' remuneration and expenses
During the year there was one staff member who was also a trustee of the academy trust.

Prof M Pike (CEO):

Remuneration: £25,000 - £30,000 (2019 - £20,000 - £25,000)
Employer’s pension contributions: £Nil (2019 - £Nil)
The directly paid remuneration stated is in addition to an amount invoiced by the University of Leeds

who second Prof M Pike to ESF. The combined remuneration from ESF and the University for this 0.5
FTE totals in the band £65,000 - £70,000.

During the year ended 31 August 2020, travel and subsistence expenses totalling £2,002 (2019 -
£3,650) were reimbursed or paid directly to 5 Trustees (2019 - 7).

Other related party transactions involving the Trustees are set out in note 27.

11 Trustees’ and officers' insurance

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA),
an alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees
and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.
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Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

12 Tangible fixed assets

Cost

At 1 September 2019
Additions

Disposals

Transfers

At 31 August 2020

Depreciation

At 1 September 2019
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposals
Transfers

At 31 August 2020
Net book value

At 31 August 2020
At 31 August 2019

Furniture Assets
Land and and Motor Computer under
buildings equipment vehicles equipment construction Total
£ 000 £000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
93,120 1,824 26 1,615 176 96,761
455 701 - 628 473 2,257
- ®3) - - - ®)
176 - - - (176) -
93,751 2,522 26 2,243 473 99,015
4,808 656 10 920 3 6,397
2,287 403 4 267 - 2,961
- (1) - - - (1)
3 - - - (3) -
7,098 1,058 14 1,187 - 9,357
86,653 1,464 12 1,056 473 89.658
88,312 1,168 16 695 173 90,364

Included within land and buildings. above, are leasehold properties which had a carrying value of £40,917,596 (2019 - £41,838,810) and freehold properties

which had a carrying value of £45,734,997 (2019 - £45,641,697).
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Emmanuel Sc‘hools Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2020 (continued)

13 Investments

The academy owns 100% of the ordinary shares of Emmanuel Academy Services Limited, a company
incorporated in England and Wales, company registration number 08809035. The principal activity of
the company is uniform sales. Turnover for the year ended 31 August 2020 was £341,783,
expenditure was £319,845 and the profit/(loss) for the year was £21,938. The assets of the company
at 31 August 2020 were £295,221, liabilities were £269,966 and capital and reserves were £25,255.

The accounts present information about the academy trust as an individual undertaking and not as a
group.

Group accounts have not been prepared on the grounds that the subsidiary undertaking results are
not material to those of the academy trust.

14 Debtors
2020 2019
‘ £ 000 £000
Trade debtors g6 84
VAT recoverable 396 221
Other debtors 3 7
Prepayments and accrued income 2,216 1,483
Balances due from related entities 140 1 93
2,851 1,988
15 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
Trade creditors 1,621 1,113
Other taxation and social security 710 622
Other creditors 49 67
Accruals : 301 272
Deferred income 1,118 738
Pension scheme creditor 686 510
‘ 4,485 3,322
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
Deferred income
Deferred income at 1 September 2019 738 426
Resources deferred in the period : 1,118 738
Amounts released from previous periods (738) (426)
Deferred income at 31 August 2020 1,118 738

At the year end, the academy trust held deferred income in respect of Universal Infant Free School
Meals, Rates Relief, SCA Funding, Local Authority Funding, Cadet Funding, School meals and music
lessons paid in advance.
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16 Creditors: amounts falling due after one year

2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
Other 234 234

Included within creditors: amounts falling due in more than one year is £25,945 (2019 - £77,836) of
creditors due in more than five years, repayable by instaiments.

Loans of £259,453 from Salix Finance Ltd which is provided on the following terms: Salix Energy
Efficiency loan (Joseph Swan Academy) - Interest free loan repayable through GAG in 6-monthly
instalments of £25,945 from March 2019.

17 Funds
Balance at Gains,
1 losses Balance at
September Incoming Resources and 31 August
2019 resources expended transfers 2020
£ 000 £000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
Restricted general funds
General annual grant fund 70 36,557 (35,646) (981) -
Other DfE/ESFA grants fund - 4,889 (4,889) - -
Other government grants - 1,744 (1,744) - -
Other income - 298 (298) - -
Parents, friends and family 9 - - - 9
Teaching school 54 67 (7(1) - 50
133 43555 _ (42.648) (981) 59
Restricted fixed asset funds 4 '
DfE/ESFA capital grants 76,145 1,368 (2,960) 1,073 75,626
Transfer from general funds 4,128 - - - 4,128
Private sector sponsorship 5,656 - - - 5,656
Capital expenditure from GAG 4,689 - - - 4,689
90,618 1,368 (2,960) 1,073 90,099
Restricted pension funds
Pension reserve (12,662) - (1,674) (3,051) (17,387)
Total restricted funds 78,089 44,923 (47,282) (2,959) 72,771
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general reserve 2,584 1,260 (1,273) (92) 2,479
Unrestricted trust fund 350 - - - 350
Total unrestricted funds 2,934 1,260 (1,273) (82) 2,829
Total funds 81,023 46,183 (48,555) (3,051) 75,600

Page 48



Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August

2020 (continued)

17 Funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Balance at Gains,
1 losses Balance at
September Incoming Resources and 31 August
2018 resources expended transfers 2019
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Restricted general funds
General annual grant fund 554 31,056 (30,596) (944) 70
Other DfE/ESFA grants fund - 2,696 (2,696) - -
Other government grants - 1,540 (1,540) - -
Parents, friends and family 9 - - - 9
Teaching school 32 46 (24) - 54
595 35,338 (34,856) (944) 133
Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE/ESFA capital grants 54,520 23,318 (2,637) 944 76,145
Transfer from general funds 4,611 - - - 4,611
Private sector sponsorship 5,656 - - - 5,656
Capital expenditure from GAG 4,206 - - - 4206
68,993 23,318 (2,637) 944 90,618
Restricted pension funds
Pension reserve (4,401) (2,012) (1,565) (4,684) (12,662)
Total restricted funds 65,187 56,644 (39,058) (4,684) 78,989
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general reserve 2,209 1,679 (1,304) - 2,584
Unrestricted trust fund 350 - - - 350
Total unrestricted funds 2,559 1,679 (1,304) - 2,934
Total funds 67,746 58,323 140,362) (4,684) 81 ,b23

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

The General Annual Grant (GAG) fund must be used for the normal running costs of the academy
trust. Under the funding agreements with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was not subject to

a limit on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2020.

Other DfE/ESFA grants, Local Authority grants and other income include Pupil Premium, insurance

refund, PE Grant, sponsorship grants, staff development grant and year 7 catch up grant.

The costs and income associated with the defined benefit pension scheme have been recorded in the
restricted fund. Staff costs are paid from the fund, including contributions to the LGPS, and the
pension liability has therefore been aligned with these funds.

Unrestricted funds can be used for any purpose at the discretion of the academy trust.
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17 Funds (continued)
Analysis of academies by fund balance

Fund balances at 31 August 2020 were allocated as follows:

2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
Bede Academy - 717
Central Services 2,074 492
Emmanuel College 814 712
The King's Academy - 1,661
Trinity Academy - (832)
Grace College . - 92
Christ's College - 225
Total before fixed assets and pension reserve 2,888 3,067
Restricted fixed asset reserve 90,099 90,618
Pension reserve . (17,387) (12,662)
Total . 75,600 81,023

From 2019/20 MAT reserves are treated as one single reserve to be managed by the Trust Board,
albeit intemally the Trust allocate resources to schools for operational purposes. CTC reserves are
still disclosed separately.

Analysis of academies by cdst

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching
and
Educational Other Other Costs
Supﬁbrt Support  Educational (excluding Total
Staff Costs  Staff Costs Supplies Depreciation) 2020
_ £ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Bede Academy 6,411 1,328 248 1,363 9,350
Central Services 549 883 10 142 1,684
Emmanuel
College 6,399 1,124 145 1,070 8,738
The King's
Academy 6,260 1,158 186 967 8,573
Trinity Academy 5,383 1,166 162 990 7,701
Grace College 5,124 465 130 1,032 6,751
Christ's College 2,051 318 - 93 438 2,900
Academy Trust 32,177 6,442 B 974 6,002 45,597
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17 Funds (continued)

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the prior year was as follows:

Teaching
and
Educational Other Other Costs _
Support Support  Educational {excluding Total
Staff Costs Staff Costs Supplies Depreciation) 2019
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Emmanuel
College , 5,676 1,013 305 1,052 8,046
Bede Academy 5,635 1,214 314 1,339 8,502
The King's .
Academy 5,616 1,173 300 984 8,073
Trinity Academy 5,317 1,217 249 1,014 7,797
Central Services 391 1,021 13 168 1,593
Christ's Coliege 629 216 17 164 1,026
Grace College 2,066 227 61 334 2,688
Academy Trust 25,330 6,081 1,259 5,055 37,725
18 Analysis of net assets between funds
Fund balances at 31 August 2020 are represented by:
) Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted general fixed asset
funds funds funds  Total funds
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000
Tangible fixed assets - - 89,658 89,658
Current assets 2,829 4,493 726 8,048
Current liabilities - (4,434) (51) . (4,485)
Creditors over 1 year - - (234) (234)
- Pension scheme liability - (17,387) - (17,387)
Total net assets 2,829 (17,328) 90,099 75,600
Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted general fixed asset
funds funds funds Total funds
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Tangible fixed assets - - 90,364 90,364
Current assets 2,934 3,404 539 - 6,877
Current liabilities - (3,271) (51) (3,322)
Creditors over 1 year - - (234) (234)
Pension scheme liability - (12,662) - (12,662)
Total net assets 2,934 (12,529) 90,618 81,023
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19 Capital commitments

Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements

2020
£ 000

1,121

2019
£ 000

Reconciliation of net (expenditure)lincome to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operaiing

activities

Net (expenditure)/income

Depreciation 6
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income

Assets transferred on conversion from Local Authority
Interest receivable 5
Defined benefit pension scheme obligation inherited 26
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions 2%
payable

Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 26
Increase in debtors

Increase in creditors .

Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets

Net cash provided by/(used in) Operating Activities

21 Cash flows from financing activities

Repayments of borrowing

Net cash used in financing activities

22 Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets
Capital funding received from sponsors and others

Net cash used in investing activities
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2020 2019

£ 000 £ 000
(2,372) 17,961
2,961 2,637

(1,368) (741)

- (22,860)

(14) (24)

- (2,012)
1,441 1,435
233 130

(863) (491)
1,189 992
1) -

1,206 (2,973)

2020 2019

£ 000 £ 000
(26) -
(26) -

2020 2019

£ 000 £ 000
14 24

(2,257) (1,528)
3 -
1,368 741

(872) (763)




Emmanuel Schools Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August

2020 (continued)

23 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2020 2019

£ 000 £ 000

Cash at bank and in hand 5,197 4,889

Total cash and cash equivalents 5,197 4,889
24 Analysis of changes in net debt

At 1

September At 31 August

2019 Cash flows 2020

£000 £000 £000

Cash 4,889 308 5,197

Loans falling due within one year (52) 26 (26)

Loans falling due after more than one year (234) - (234)

(286) 26 (260)

Total 4,603 334 4,937

25 Members’ liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member.

26 Pension and similar obligations

The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Middlesbrough Borough
Council (Teessuie Pension Fund), Northumberiand County Council (Northumberiand County Council
Pension Fund), South Tyneside Council (Tyne and Wear Pension Fund) and Sotith Yorkshire
Pensions Authority (South Yorkshire Pension Fund). All are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS
31 March 2016.

Contributions amounting to £686,289 (2019 - £509,678) were payable to the schemes at 31 August
2020 and are included within creditors.

Teachers'’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed
by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.
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The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other
pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions
2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future
costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried
out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5
March 2019.

The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

+ employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer
administration charge)

+ total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £191,500 million, and notional assets (estimated future
contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £176,600 million
giving a notional past service deficit of £14,900 million

+ an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations

+ the assumed real rate of return is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate
of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%.

The TPS valuation for 2012 determined an employer rate of 16.4%, which was payable from
September 2015. The next valuation of the TPS is currently underway based on April 2016 data,
whereupon the employer contribution rate is expected to be reassessed and will be payable from 1
September 2019.

The employer’s pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £4,675,307 (2019: £2,719,009).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme.
The academy trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined
contribution scheme. The academy trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local government pension scheme

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in
the event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be
met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.
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Local government pension schemes
Teesside Pension Fund

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2020 was £271,000 (2019 -
£239,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £203,000 (2019 - £178,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £68,000 (2019 - £61,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are
17.5 per cent for employers and 5.5 - 12.5 per cent for employees. The scheme is managed by

Middlesbrough Borough Council.

Principal actuarial assumptions

Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/infiation
Discounit rate for scheme liabilities

Inflation assumptlons (CP1)

2020
%
3.30
2.30
1.70
2.30

2019

%
3.10
2.10
1.90
2.10

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in the mortality

rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today
Males retiring today
Females retiring today

Retiring in 20 years

Males retiring in 20 years
Females retiring in 20 years
Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortality assumption — 1 year increase
Mortality assumption — 1 year decrease
CPl rate +0.1%

CPl rate -0.1%

The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme were:

Equities

Property

Cash and other liquid assets
Other

Total market value of assets
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2020 2019
21.80 21.90
23.50 23.80
23.20 23.60
25.30 25.70

At 31 August At 31 August
2020 2019
£000 £000

10,530 9,410
11,004 9,823
10,379 9,288
11,165 9,944
10,789 9,670
10,745 9,658
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
4,877 4,378
513 481
744 728
282 143
6,416 5,730
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26 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

The actual return on scheme assets was £5,520,000 (2019 - £210,000).

Amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities

2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
Current service cost 494 303
Past service cost - 75
Interest income (110) (153)
Interest cost 182 213
Total amount recognised in the SOFA 566 438
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows: _
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
At start of period 9,614 7,651
Current service cost 494 303
Interest cost 182 213
Employee contributions 68 61
Actuarial (gain)/loss 546 1,440
Benefits paid : (137) (129)
Past service cost o - 75
At 31 August 10,767 9,614
Changes in the fair value of academy trust's share of scheme assets:
: 2020 2019
£ 000 £000
At start of period 5,730 5410
Interest income - 110 153
Actuarial gain/(loss) 442 57
Employer contributions 203 178
Employee contributions 68 61
Benefits paid (137) (129)
At 31 August 6,416 5,730
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South Yorkshire Pension Fund

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2020 was £269,000 (2019 -
£270,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £197,000 (2019 - £195,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £72,000 (2019 - £75,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are
17.7 per cent for employers and 5.5 - 12.5 per cent for employees. The scheme is managed by South

Yorkshire County Council.

Principal actuarial assumptions

Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation
Discount rate for scheme liabilities

Inflation assumptions (CPI)

2020
%
3.70
2.50
1.80
2.40

2019

%
3.30
2.10
1.80
2.00

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in the mortality

rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today
Males retiring today
Females retiring today

Retiring in 20 years
Males retlrlng in 20 years
Females retiring in 20 years

Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortality assumption — 1 year increase
Mortality assumption — 1 year decrease
CPl rate +0.1%

CPl rate -0.1%

The.academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme were:

Equities

Government bonds

Other bonds

Property

Cash and other liquid assets
Other

Total market value of assets
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2020

22.40
25.20

23.90
27.10

2019

23.10
25.90

25.30
28.30

At 31 August

At 31 August

2020 2019
£000 £000
2,951 2,899
3,284 -
3,362 3,233
2,877 -
3,285 3,265
2,950 -
2020 2019
£000 £ 000
2,515 2,756
780 754
467 385
446 458
191 169
907 748
5,306 5,270
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26 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

The actual return on scheme assets was £9,000 (2019 - £365,000).

Amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities

2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
Current service cost - 473 373
Past service cost - 162
Interest income (96) (140)
Interest cost 161 180
Admin expenses 6 5
Total amount recognised in the SOFA 534 570
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
At start of period 8,350 6,240
Current service cost 473 373
Interest cost 151 180
Employee contributions : 72 75
Actuarial (gain)/loss (505) 1,464
Benefits paid : (119) (134)
Past service cost - 152
At 31 August 8,422 8,350
Changes in the fair value of academy trust's share of scheme assets:
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
At start of period 5,270 4,770
Interest income 96 140
Actuarial gain/(loss) (210) 224
Employer contributions ' 197 195
Employee contributions ' 72 75
Benefits paid (119) (134)
At 31 August 5,306 5,270
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Northumberland County Council Pension Fund

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2020 was £660,000 (2019 -
£540,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £490,000 (2019 - £390,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £170,000 (2019 - £150,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are
20.5 per cent for employers and 5.5 - 12.5 per cent for employees. The scheme is managed by South

Tyneside Council.

Principal actuarial assumptions

Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation
Discount rate for scheme liabilities

Inflation assumptions (CPI)

2020
%
3.80
2.30
1.70
2.30

2019

%
3.60
2.10
1.90
2.10

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in the mortality

rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today
Males retiring today
Females retiring today

Retiring in 20 years
Malés retiring in 20 years
Females retiring in 20 years

Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortality assumption ~ 1 year increase
Mortality assumiption — 1 year decrease
CPI rate +0.1%

CPl rate -0.1%

The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme were:

Equities

Corporate bonds
Government bonds

Property

Cash and other liquid assets
Other

Total market value of assets
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2020

21.80
25.00

23.50
26.80

2019

21.90
23.80

23.60
25.70

At 31 August At 31 August

2020 2019
£000 £000
13,020 9,540
13,700 10,000
12,870 9,840
13,830 9,700
13,380 9,840
13,320 9,700
2020 2019
£ 000 £000
4,110 4,650
1,770 520
190 1,320
710 260
150 20
780 350
7,710 7,120
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The actual return on scheme assets was £50,000 (2019 - £470,000).

Amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities

2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
Current service cost 1,170 710
Past service cost - 350
Interest income (140) (180)
Interest cost 190 190
Total amount recognised in the SOFA 1,220 1,070
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
At start of period 9,770 6,850
Current service cost 1,170 710
Interest cost 190 190
Employee contributions 170 160
Actuarial (gain)/loss 2,170 1,570
Benefits paid (120) (50)
Past service cost - 350
At 31 August 13,350 9,770
Changes in the fair value of academy trust's share of scheme assets:
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
At start of period 7,120 6,160
Interest income 140 180
Actuarial gain/(loss) - (90) 290
Employer ‘contributions 490 390
Employee contributions 170 150
Benefits paid (120) (50)
At 31 August 7,710 7,120
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Tyne & Wear Pension Fund

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2020 was £293,000 (2019 -
£144,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £226,000 (2019 - £112,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £67,000 (2019 - £32,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are
18.7 per cent for employers and 5.5 - 12.5 per cent for employees. The scheme is managed by South
Tyneside Council.

Principal actuarial assumptions

2020 2019

% %

Rate of increase in salaries 3.70 3.50
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.20 2.00
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.70 1.90
Inflation assumptions (CP1) 2.20 2.00

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in the mortality
rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2020 2019

Retiring today

Malés retiring today : 21.80 21.90
Females retiring today 25.00 25.10
Retiring in 20 years

Males retiring in 20 years 23.50 23.60
Females retiring in 20 years 26.80 26.90

Sensitivity analysis
At 31 August At 31 August

2020 2019
R , £000 £000
Discount rate +0.1% 9,046 7,643
Discount rate -0.1% " 9,595 8,109
Mortality assumption — 1 year increase 8,990 7,614
Mortality assumption — 1 year decrease 9,651 8,136
CPl rate +0.1% 9,363 7,964
CPI rate -0.1% 9,269 7,783
The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme were:
2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
Equities 2,694 316
Corporate bonds 1,153 550
Government bonds 121 198
Property 463 415
Cash and other liquid assets 96 101
Other 509 400
Total market value of assets 5,036 1,980
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The actual return on scheme assets was (£61,000) (2019 - £250,000).

Amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities

2020 2019
£ 000 £000
Current service cost : 420 166
Past service cost - 181
Interest income (94) (46)
Interest cost - 150 66
Total amount recognised in the SOFA 476 367
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:
2020 2019
_ £ 000 £ 000
At start of period 7,873 -
Transferred in on existing academies joining the trust - 6,385
Current service cost 420 166
Interest cost 150 66
Employee contributions 67 32
Actuarial (gain)/loss 827 985
Benefits paid . (21) 58
Past service cost - 181
At 31 August 9,316 7,873
Changes in the fair value of academy trust's share of scheme assets:
B 2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
At start of period 4,825 -
Transferred in on existing academies joining the trust - 4,373
Interest income 94 46
Actuarial gain/(loss) (155) 204
Employer contributions 226 112
Employee contributions 67 32
Benefits paid ' 21) 58
At 31 August 5,036 4,825

27 Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of Trustees being drawn
from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in
which the Trustees have an interest. All transactions invalving such organisations are conducted in
accordance with the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook and with the academy trust's
financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party

transactions.
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Income related party transactions N
During the year the academy trust made the following related party transactions:

Emmanuel Academy Services Limited

(The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Emmanuel Schools Foundation.)

During the year, expenditure of £75,021 (2019 - £64,628) was recharged from Emmanuel Schools
Foundation in respect of salary and other costs relating to the company.

Included within creditors is a balance of £140,263 (2019 - £192,631) owed to Emmanuel Schools
Foundation.

At the year end, the company recorded profits of £21,825, in line with accounting standards, the
taxable profits will be gift aided to Emmanuel Schools Foundation within 9 months of the year end.
The gift aid payment will be recognised upon payment of the balance to the parent company, and is
therefore not included in these financial statements. In earlier years, gift aid payments have been
recognised in the year in which relevant profits were generated.

28 Agency arrangements

The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA. In the
accounting period ending 31 August 2020 the academy trust received £93,758 and disbursed £85,909
from the fund. An amount of £50,912 is included in other creditors relating to undistributed funds that
is repayable to ESFA.

Comparatives for the accounting period ending 31 August 2019 are £80,207 received, £32,593
disbursed and £43,604 included in other creditors.
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29 Teaching school trading account

2020 2019

£ 000 £ 000
Income
Direct Income
Other income 67 46
Other Income
Fundraising and other trading activities 1561 130
Total Income 218 176
Expenditure
Other costs
Other support costs (71) ~ {25)
Total Expenditure 71) (25)
Transfers between funds excluding depreciation (77) "~ (121)
Surplus from all sources 70 30
Teaching school balances at 1 September 2019 43 13
Teaching school balances at 31 August 2020 113 43
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